
 S
ou

th
 N

or
fo

lk
 

 H
is

to
ric

 &
 A

rc
hi

te
ct

ur
al

 R
ev

ie
w

 B
oa

rd
 

 

December 5, 2019 
 

 

 
 

 

 

 



AGENDA 

Board of Historic and Architectural Review 
December 5, 2019 

South Norfolk Memorial Library 
801 Poindexter St. 

5:30 PM 

A. Call To Order

B. Roll Call

C. Approval of the November 7, 2019 regular meeting minutes.

D. Consent Agenda

E. Regular Agenda

1. 1205 Chesapeake Avenue
Replace all windows with 1-over-1 windows in white vinyl and PVC.

2. 1100 Jackson Avenue
Replace existing siding and non-decorative integral trim with vinyl lap siding and trim, 
replace double hung windows with like vinyl windows, and paint exterior.

3. 1526 Jackson Avenue
Replace existing metal roof with architectural grade asphalt shingles.

4. 1108 Ohio Street
Replace front door.

5. 1329 Chesapeake Avenue
Replace cedar shakes, clapboard wood siding, and non-decorative integral trim with vinyl 
lap siding and trim.

6. 1209 Holly Avenue
After-the-Fact relocation of front door entryway.

7. 1303 Holly Avenue
After-the-Fact replacement of porch balusters and railing in new style.

8. 1307 Jefferson Street
After-the-Fact installation of porch step railing.

F. Old Business

G. New Business

1. Next South Norfolk joint Boards and Commissions quarterly meeting.

H. Committee Reports

I. Zoning Inspection Status Report

J. Legal Guidance

K. Administrative Approvals 



L. Citizen Input

M. Adjournment

The City of Chesapeake will provide reasonable accommodations and services necessary for sensory-
impaired and disabled persons by contacting Mr. Tim Winslow, Facilities Manager, Public Works at 382-6273 
at least three-working days in advance and language assistance to individuals with limited English proficiency 
to the extent possible by contacting the Planning Department at 382-6176 at least 10 days in advance of this 
meeting.  *While this is not a public hearing, the public and any one or several members of the Chesapeake 
City Council may choose to attend. 



1 

Meeting Minutes 
Historic and Architectural Review Board (HARB)  

November 7, 2019  
South Norfolk Memorial Library – 801 Poindexter St. 

ROLL CALL 
HARB Members Present: Chair – Joe Maguire; Vice-Chair – Marilee Peterson; David Schleeper; Ellsworth Spicher; Scott 
Davis; Tammi Amick; and Edward Conner. 

Staff: Meredith H. Jacobi, Legal Counsel – City Attorney’s Office; Pam Witham. and Carlos Rodriguez – Development 
and Permits, Code Compliance Division; Nathen Lamb – Recording Secretary, Planning Department. 

Chair J. Maguire called the meeting to order at 5:36 p.m. 

MINUTES 
Approval of the October 3, 2019 regular meeting minutes; motion to approve minutes with no amendments made 
by D. Schleeper, and seconded by T. Amick, all members present voting yes. 

REGULAR AGENDA 
1205 Chesapeake Avenue 
Original Request  
 Replace all windows with 1-over-1 windows in white vinyl and PVC; motion to continue application as submitted 

made by M. Peterson, and seconded by T. Amick, all members present voting yes. 

1100 Jackson Avenue 
Original Request  
 Replace metal porch roof, reinstall side balcony, demolish chimneys, replace double hung windows with like vinyl 

windows, and paint exterior, applicant removes chimneys demolition, painting, and windows replacement from 
application, Board approves porch and bay roof replacement, and balcony installation; motion to continue 
application as amended made by E. Spicher, and seconded by J. Maguire, all members present voting yes. 

1526 Jackson Avenue 
Original Request  
 Replace existing metal roof with architectural grade asphalt shingles; motion to continue application as 

submitted made by M. Peterson, and seconded by E. Connor, all members present voting yes. 

Old Business 
None 

New Business 
1. South Norfolk Boards and Commissions joint quarterly meeting

Nathen to email out adopted grant program and draft grant application forms.
2. Great Bridge Village Design Guidelines presentation

All Board members to read GBV design guidelines document in preparation for Nov. 14 joint HPC meeting.
3. Habitat for Humanity new construction

Nathen to advertise a new construction tour at 1902 Stonehurst Street with Habitat for Humanity for Nov. 12.

Committee Reports  



 

2 
 

None  
 
Zoning Inspection Status Report 
None 
 
Legal Guidance  
None  
 
Administrative Approvals 
N. Lamb reported three (8) administrative approvals – all like for like. 
 
Public Input 
Kellie Alexander of 1336 Chesapeake Avenue advocated for more consistency regarding how the Board votes on 
applications, particularly for metal roofs and porch railings. K. Alexander recommended the Board take a more 
comprehensive approach for reviewing metal roof applications. 
 
ADJOURNMENT: The regular meeting adjourned at 7:41 p.m. 
 
 
 
MEETING MINUTES APPROVED:  _____________________________ 



 
 
 
 

 
1205 Chesapeake Avenue 





�

�

�



�

�

�

�





















Customer: Kelley  Date: 10/3/19 
Address: 1205 Chesapeake Ave, Chesapeake, Va 23324
Phone (day): _________________________________________ Phone (evening): 
E-mail: ________________________________________________
Sales Rep: Matt LeBlanc 

SPECIFICATIONS 
Estimate to repair wood windows: 
20 windows in need of various repairs. All need reglazing, scraping, priming and finish 
painting. 15 of the 20 need to have weights/balance system completely redone. 
3 of the 20 need glass replacement. 
5 of 20 have minor to severe rot around the sills: there is no guarantee all of these can be 
repaired, may need to replace. 
Estimate to repair windows $13,230.00 

Thanks 

Matt LeBlanc 





ESTIMATE
Full House Inc

604 General Gage Rd.
Va Beach, Virginia 23462

United States

BILL TO
Daniel O'malley
1205 chesapeake ave
Chesapeake, Virginia 23324
United States

7574184522

Estimate Number: 30

Estimate Date: October 20, 2019

Expires On: October 20, 2019

Grand Total (USD): $20,000.00

Items Price Amount

labor material
Price to repair all 20 windows.

$20,000.00 $20,000.00

Total: $20,000.00

Grand Total (USD): $20,000.00

Sinature



ESTIMATE
Full House Inc

604 General Gage Rd.
Va Beach, Virginia 23462

United States

BILL TO
Daniel O'malley
1205 chesapeake ave
Chesapeake, Virginia 23324
United States

7574184522

Estimate Number: 29

Estimate Date: October 20, 2019

Expires On: October 20, 2019

Grand Total (USD): $6,000.00

Items Price Amount

labor material
Removal and replacement of 20 windows.

$6,000.00 $6,000.00

Total: $6,000.00

Grand Total (USD): $6,000.00

Sinature



 
 
 
 

 
1100 Jackson Avenue 



Replace existing siding and non-decorative integral trim with vinyl lap siding and 
trim, replace double hung windows with like vinyl windows, and paint exterior.



�

�

�



�

�

�

�



 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 





 



 
 
 
 

 
1526 Jackson Avenue 









 

 

 
 

 
 

 
Proposal Date: October 7, 2019 
 
 
To:  Judith Moreno 

c/o Vanessa Irwin 
  1526 Jackson Avenue 
  Chesapeake, VA 23324 
 
Job Address: 1526 Jackson Avenue 
  Chesapeake, VA 23324 
 
Re:   Residential Metal Roof Condition  
 
 
Dear Ms. Moreno / Ms. Irwin, 
 
On October 7, 2019, I visited the property at the above referenced address and found the 
existing metal roof to be in fair to poor condition.  A chimney was demolished and in place 
of it, a temporary repair was made consisting of ice & water shield.  Repairs were made to 
the right rear valley using roof cement to prevent water intrusion.  One of the rafters needs to 
be secured and some of the 1x6 planks also require replacement due to water damage.  The 
roof appears to have been previously coated several times, however rust is still coming 
through. The roof is currently metal and we have provided an estimate to replace the roof 
with architectural shingles like the neighboring homes. 
 
*See attached photos for reference.  We recommend roof replacement at this time.  
 
Should you have questions or need more information regarding this roof, please feel free to 
contact me at 757-335-1712. 
 
 
Sincerely, 
 
Brian Spruill 
 
Brian Spruill 
Estimator / Inspector 
 
 
 
 

757 Mount Vernon Avenue, Portsmouth, Virginia 23707 
Phone (757) 399-3066 - Facsimile (757) 399-3065 
Email: service@andrewsroofing.com 
www.andrewsroofing.com 
License #: 2705067832 • Class: A 
Classification: Building • Specialty Service: Roofing 
 



Page 1 of 3 
                Buyer Initials 

               Andrews Roofing Representative Initials 
 

 
 
 
  
 
 
 

                                                                                                                   PROPOSAL 
Proposal Date: October 2, 2019 
 
To:  Vanessa Irwin 
  1526 Jackson Ave. 
  Chesapeake, VA 23324 
 
Job Address: 1526 Jackson Ave. 
  Chesapeake, VA 23324 
 
Re:    Residential Shingle Roof Replacement of house only excluding detached structures 
      
 
     THIS PROPOSAL, is from ANDREWS ROOFING COMPANY, INC., a Virginia corporation, 
(hereinafter called “Andrews Roofing”), to Vanessa Irwin (hereinafter called “Buyer”); 
 

Furnishing of Materials and Work 
     Andrews Roofing proposes to furnish all materials and perform all labor necessary for the completion 
of the following. 
 
BASE BID: 

 Remove and dispose of the existing one (1) layer of shingle roofing. 
 Inspect wood decking and replace damaged or deteriorated roof sheathing as necessary. 

(Note:  Up to 70 linear feet of 1X6 included in this quotation.  See “Wood Clause” below for 
additional sheathing replacement, if necessary.) 

 Install a CertainTeed™ Roof Runner synthetic felt underlayment. 
 Install Ice & Water Shield underlayment in valleys and low slope areas. 
 Install CertainTeed™ Swift Start 7” universal starters on all eaves and rakes. 
 Install new CertainTeed™ Landmark, Lifetime Limited Warranty, architectural shingle roofing  

(Color:      ). 
 Install CertainTeed™ Shadow Ridge / Cedar Crest cap shingles at all hips and ridges. 
 Install approx. seventy-two (72) linear feet of new shingle over type ridge vent. 
 Install new “Ultimate Pipe Flashing” pipe collars on two (2) plumbing pipes.   
 Sister damaged rafter at right rear of house. 
 Provide appropriate flashings at all headwalls. 
 Provide manufacturer’s Lifetime Limited Material Warranty, and a 10-Year workmanship 

warranty from Andrews Roofing Co. 
              Base Bid Amount: $6,670.00 

 
Payment Terms and Contract Price 

The total amount due ½ upon acceptance of proposal and remaining balance at the completion of the 
above described work is:  
 
 CONTRACT PRICE (Including accepted options): $ 6,670.00    
Unless otherwise agreed to via change order as described above. Final payment is due immediately 
upon completion of work). 
 

757 Mount Vernon Avenue, Portsmouth, Virginia 23707 
Phone (757) 399-3066 - Facsimile (757) 399-3065 
Email: service@andrewsroofing.com 
www.andrewsroofing.com 
License #: 2705067832 • Class: A 
Classification: Building • Specialty Service: Roofing 



Page 2 of 3 
                Buyer Initials 

               Andrews Roofing Representative Initials 
 

 
 

Wood Clause 
***NOTE:  Any rotten or deteriorated plywood roof sheathing will be replaced with new roof 

sheathing material for $50.00 per sheet over and above contract amount.  Any rotten or 
deteriorated plank board roof sheathing will be replaced with new for $2.75 per linear foot over 
and above contract amount. Any rotten or deteriorated fire rated plywood roof sheathing will be 
replaced with new fire rated roof sheathing material for $80.00 per sheet over and above 
contract amount. 

 
ADDITIONAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

 
Warranties 

 All work shall be performed and completed in a professional manner and in accordance with 
material manufacturer’s specifications.  Manufacturer and/or workmanship warranties shall be valid to 
Buyer upon full payment of contract amount, as amended, unless otherwise agreed to in writing.  For 
a period of (see above scope of work) years from the date of completion of work, Andrews Roofing 
shall, at its own expense, furnish labor and materials to repair leaks caused by its breach of its 
workmanship warranty.  There are no warranties that extend beyond those described in this Proposal.  
The Buyer has a duty to notify Andrews Roofing immediately upon discovery of any leaks that the Buyer 
believes is the result of workmanship.  Failure to do so for an extended period of time could cause 
growth of molds, mildew or potentially harmful organisms.  Andrews Roofing is not liable for property 
damage or personal injury caused by said organisms.  This paragraph serves as the Andrews Roofing 
workmanship warranty. This warranty is contingent upon terms of this contract; (payment in full, etc.) 

 
Default by Buyer 

 The Buyer shall be deemed in default in the event that full payment of contract price is not 
made immediately upon completion.  Upon default, a 1.5% monthly finance charge (18% per annum) 
will be assessed on all past due payments.  In the event of default under this Agreement, including, but 
not limited to, failure to timely pay Andrews Roofing in accordance with the provisions set forth herein, 
in addition to all remedies available law or in equity, Andrews Roofing shall be entitled to recover all 
direct and indirect damages, consequential damages, reasonable attorney’s fees and other expenses 
incurred by Andrews Roofing attributable in whole or in part to Buyer’s default without regard to whether 
litigation or any alternate dispute resolution proceeding is instituted by any party. 
 

Project Preparation; Residential and Commercial (may not be applicable for all buildings) 
Buyer is hereby advised to properly prepare for the project by (a) removing breakable items 

from walls and shelves; (b) moving or covering furniture under skylights; (c) covering clothing, 
automobiles, and other valuables in the attic and garage as sawdust will most likely make its way into 
those areas; (d) cutting off power to all fans; (e) removing all breakable items from around the outside 
of the structure; (f) parking all vehicles away from the structure, garage, and driveway; (g) keeping 
children and pets safely away from the work area (including all residents, tenants, employees, etc.); (h) 
preparing for job-related noise; (i) notifying tenants and any residents in the building of our work; (j) 
letting us know if there are special hours or days when we are not permitted to work; (k) satellite dish 
is to be removed and left on site for reinstallation by others (ARC recommends that dish not be 
installed on rooftop). 
 

Obstructions 
 It will be the Buyers responsibility to remove any obstacles that may prohibit the installation of 
roof. 
 
 

Material Deliveries 
 Project materials may arrive at the job site prior to the scheduled production date, and these 
materials may remain on the project site for several days prior to installation.   
 



Page 3 of 3 
                Buyer Initials 

               Andrews Roofing Representative Initials 
 

 
 

Defects 
 Vibrations caused from hammering and other activities can loosen nails or screws in the 
structure’s interior and exterior walls.  Buyer agrees that Andrews Roofing is not liable for any nails, 
screws, or other hanging/support devices that become loose or removed from the structure and buyer 
assumes full responsibility for any such adjustments, replacements and/or repairs.  In addition, any 
puncture by a roof nail or other fastener to wiring, plumbing, Freon lines, etc. which is installed in 
violation of building codes before roof installation is the responsibility of the buyer.  Sometimes items 
such as these are installed too close to roof sheathing.  Flat roofs only: In some cases, existing roofs 
contain moisture.  While the job is under way, this moisture could drip down into the building.  Andrews 
Roofing is not responsible for any damage caused by this leakage (rare occurrences).  The abatement 
of asbestos or other hazardous material, if any exists, is not included in this contract.   
 

Additional Terms 
Work will begin between approximately one to five weeks after contract execution, depending 

on Andrews Roofing back log.  The job will take approximately 1-2 work days to complete.  Events 
not under the control of Andrews Roofing, such as weather, material shortages, etc. do not constitute 
abandonment of the job on the part of Andrews Roofing.  Delays caused by these events are not 
included in the estimated job completion time and do not affect the payment terms.  Work will be 
completed as per all applicable local requirements for building permits, inspections, and zoning.  
Neither party has cancellation rights of this contract. 

 
Entire Agreement, Governing Law 

 This accepted Proposal embodies the entire agreement between the parties and may be 
changed only by written amendment hereto, signed by both parties. 
 This accepted proposal shall be governed by the laws of the Commonwealth of Virginia.   

Any changes made to this by buyer must be accepted and initialed by Andrews Roofing at time 
of buyer’s acceptance of proposal.  If these changes are not initialed by Andrews Roofing, changes are 
not part of proposal. 
 
NOTE: This proposal is valid for 15 days. 
 
      
Brian G. Spruill,  
Sales/Estimator 

 
Acceptance of Proposal 

     I have fully read the above Proposal, and find that its prices, terms, specifications, provisions and 
conditions are satisfactory and are hereby accepted, resulting in an agreement between Andrews 
Roofing and Buyer. 
 

BUYER 
 
       
Signature       Date 
 
       
Print Name 
 



CONSTRUCTION  BY  DESIGNS 

Serving all of Hampton Roads. 

Virginia Beach, VA. 23462 

Carlos Dosamantes 

 

Email   

                                                                     Quote  #  0001526 

Roof  Installment  at  1526  Jackson  Ave  Chesapeake, VA. 

 

Description      

   Roof Installment 

.-After careful evaluation of your 23 square roof system, I have come to the conclusion that your roof is 
beyond being restored. The following needs performed as follows; 

.-Uninstall 23 squares of metal roofing 

.-Install new upgraded synthetic felt 

.-Cut out 2” of sheeting on both sides of ridge for proper ventilation 

.-Install 1 square of 3 tab starter shingles 

.-Install 25 squares of new upgraded GAF Architectural Lifetime Warranty Shingles 

.-Install upgraded Superior Cobra Ridge venting to ridges to ensure proper ventilation 

.-Install 1 square of 3 tab capping shingles over new superior vents 

.-Seal all fasteners and areas of concern with NP1 50 Year roof sealant 

.-Disposal of all debris 

.-Clean gutters as roof demolition is being performed 

.-Cover bushes, flowers, a/c units etc. with heavy duty tarps to prevent any damage 

.-Schedule delivery of materials 

.-Produce pictures of job being performed 

 



After completion of your new GAF Lifetime Architectural Asphalt Shingle Roof System, with upgraded 
synthetic felt and superior Cobra Ridge venting, you will then get the maximum potential out of your 
roof system as long as properly maintenance every 8-10 years. 

 

 

TOTAL   $8,500.00 

 

 

 

                       

 

 

            



 

 

 
 

 



 

 

 

 



 

 

 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 



Quality Home Inspections 
28 Paula Maria Drive 

Newport News VA 23606 
757-594-1449 

qualityinspections.yourreport@gmail.com 

Report: 2461 

Page 1

© Quality Home Inspections Confidential - for client use only.   Use by any unauthorized persons is prohibited.

 

Confidential Inspection Report
1526 Jackson Ave
Chesapeake, VA  

Floyd Gibbs- Owner/VA State Certified Inspector #3380 00473
Certified Master Inspector

Certified Inspector CRI #: 201111
BBB A+ Rating

 

May 6, 2019 

Prepared for: Judy Moreno
  

Inspection performed by: Gene Deitz #3380000594 

This report is the exclusive property of the inspection company and the client whose name appears herewith
and its use by any unauthorized persons is prohibited.



Report: 2461   Address: 1526 Jackson Ave
Page 2

© Quality Home Inspections Confidential - for client use only.   Use by any unauthorized persons is prohibited.

Inspection Table of Contents
GENERAL INFORMATION 3

EXTERIOR & FOUNDATION 5

ROOF SYSTEM 10

PLUMBING SYSTEM 14

HEATING - AIR CONDITIONING 17

ELECTRICAL SYSTEM 21

INTERIOR ROOMS 25

GARAGE - CARPORT 33

KITCHEN - APPLIANCES 34

BATHROOMS 38

GROUNDS 40



Report: 2461   Address: 1526 Jackson Ave
Page 3

© Quality Home Inspections Confidential - for client use only.   Use by any unauthorized persons is prohibited.

GENERAL INFORMATION
Client & Site Information:
1.1 Inspection Date And
Time:
May 6, 2019 3:00 PM.

1.2 Client:
Ms. Judy Moreno.

1.3 Inspection Site:
1526 Jackson Ave
Chesapeake, VA   

1.4 Inspector:
Gene Deitz #3380000594

1.5 Total Area
1304.

1.6 Estimated Age:
1922.

Climate Conditions:
1.7 Weather:
Clear

1.8 Soil Conditions:
Wet

1.9 Outside Temperature
(f):
60-70.

Building Characteristics:
1.10 Building Style & Type:
1 Family. 

1.11 Stories:
2

1.12 Space Below Grade:
Basement.

Utility Services:
1.13 Water Source:
Public.

1.14 Sewage Disposal:
Public 

1.15 Utilities Status:
All utilities are on at the time of inspection.

Other Information:
1.16 Area:
City.

1.17 House Occupied
Yes, the home was occupied at the time of inspection. 

1.18 People Present:
Buyer
Buyers Family
Buyers Agent

REPORT LIMITATIONS

This report is intended only as a general guide to help the client make his own evaluation of the overall condition of the
home, and is not intended to reflect the value of the premises, nor make any representation as to the advisability of
purchase.  The report expresses the personal opinions of the inspector, based upon his visual impressions of the
conditions that existed at the time of the inspection only.  The inspection and report are not intended to be technically
exhaustive, or to imply that every component was inspected, or that every possible defect was discovered.  No
disassembly of equipment, opening of walls, moving of furniture, appliances or stored items, or excavation was
performed.  All components and conditions which by the nature of their location are concealed, camouflaged or difficult
to inspect are excluded from the report.   The inspection is performed in compliance with generally accepted standard of



Report: 2461   Address: 1526 Jackson Ave
Page 4

© Quality Home Inspections Confidential - for client use only.   Use by any unauthorized persons is prohibited.

practice, a copy of which is available upon request. In the case of a pre-listing inspection-Quality Home Inspections
speaks only to the conditions at the time of inspection, and is not responsible for any changes/alterations/repairs after
inspection date. If repairs are completed, please have all sub-contractors to provide proof of work that was performed,
this will need to be turned over to the buyer in the event of closing. Each subcontractor is responsible for the quality and
warranty on the work that they performed at the property. 

We detail items by color based on urgency, Green is used to represent items that are preventative maintenance. Yellow
is used to represent general maintenance or service items, and Red represents items of deficiency. RED items need
immediate attention to prevent damage or further damage depending on the situation. We recommend a licensed expert
to further evaluate, make recommendations/needed repairs of RED items. Systems and conditions which are not within
the scope of the inspection include, but are not limited to: formaldehyde, lead paint, asbestos, toxic or flammable
materials, and other environmental hazards; pest infestation, playground equipment, efficiency measurement of
insulation or heating and cooling equipment, internal or underground drainage or plumbing, any systems which are shut
down or otherwise secured; water wells (water quality and quantity) zoning ordinances; intercoms; security systems; heat
sensors; privately provided water/sewage systems (including wells), cosmetics or building code conformity. Due to
standards currently set forth, we are unable to do "invasive testing" which includes (but is not limited to) removal of
covers from HVAC systems to view internal components and puncturing wood to test for moisture/insect damage. A
moisture termite inspection is always recommended, as we are not experts and can only speak to the conditions viewed
at time of inspection. Any general comments about these systems and conditions are informational only and do not
represent an inspection.
 
The inspection report should not be construed as a compliance inspection of any governmental or non governmental
codes or regulations.  The report is not intended to be a warranty or guarantee of the present or future adequacy or
performance of the structure, its systems, or their component parts.  This report does not constitute any express or
implied warranty of merchantability or fitness for use regarding the condition of the property and it should not be relied
upon as such.  Any opinions expressed regarding adequacy, capacity, or expected life of components are general
estimates based on information about similar components and occasional wide variations are to be expected between
such estimates and actual experience.

We certify that our inspectors have no interest, present or contemplated, in this property or its improvement and no
involvement with trades people or benefits derived from any sales or improvements.  To the best of our knowledge and
belief, all statements and information in this report are true and correct.

Should any disagreement or dispute arise as a result of this inspection or report, it shall be decided by arbitration and
shall be submitted for binding, non-appealable arbitration to the American Arbitration Association in accordance with its
Construction Industry Arbitration Rules then obtaining, unless the parties mutually agree otherwise.  In the event of a
claim, the Client will allow the Inspection Company to inspect the claim prior to any repairs or waive the right to make
the claim.  Client agrees not to disturb or repair or have repaired anything which may constitute evidence relating to the
complaint, except in the case of an emergency.



Report: 2461   Address: 1526 Jackson Ave
Page 5

© Quality Home Inspections Confidential - for client use only.   Use by any unauthorized persons is prohibited.

EXTERIOR & FOUNDATION
All structures are dependent on the soil beneath them for support, but soils are not uniform.  Some that appear to be
firm and solid can become unstable during seismic activity or may expand with the influx of water, moving structures
with relative easy and fracturing slabs and other hard surfaces.  In accordance with our standards of practice, we identify
foundation types and look for any evidence of structural deficiencies.  However, minor cracks or deteriorated surfaces
are common in many foundations and most do not represent a structural problem.   If major cracks are present along
with bowing, we routinely recommend further evaluation be made by a qualified Class A contractor or structural
engineer.  All exterior grades should allow for surface and roof water to flow away from the foundation.  All concrete
floor slabs experience some degree of cracking due to shrinkage in the curing process.  In most instances floor
coverings prevent recognition of cracks or settlement in all but the most severe cases.  Where carpeting and other floor
coverings are installed, the materials and condition of the flooring underneath cannot be determined.  Areas hidden from
view by finished walls or stored items cannot be judged and are not a part of this inspection.  We will certainly alert you
to any suspicious cracks if they are clearly visible.  However, we are not specialists, and in the absence of any major
defects, we may not recommend that you consult with a foundation contractor, a structural engineer, or a geologist, but
this should not deter you from seeking the opinion of any such expert.  We  also routinely recommend that inquiry be
made with the seller about knowledge of any prior foundation or structural repairs. As to the exterior walls/trim, some
areas may not be visible due to gutters etc... if this is the case, we are not responsible for those areas which we cannot
view (example-slab foundations). The chimney should be cleaned/evaluated by a licensed chimney expert before first
use to insure proper operation.
Exterior Walls And Trim:
2.1 Walls:
The outside/exterior walls of the home are composed of:
Wood Siding and
Brick Siding
Asbestos (Possible)

2.2 Maintenance Condition:
Remove the pipe and cap off the brick at the left side of the house.

 
2.3 Immediate Concerns:
Replace the damaged siding tiles as needed.
Install proper siding at the rear of the house where the window has been removed.



Report: 2461   Address: 1526 Jackson Ave
Page 6

© Quality Home Inspections Confidential - for client use only.   Use by any unauthorized persons is prohibited.

 
2.4 Trim:
The exterior trim of the home is composed of:
Wood

2.5 Maintenance Condition:
There is normal deterioration noted to the trim. The trim is due to be scraped, caulked, and/or painted as part of routine
maintenance at the exterior walls/porch/soffits and to prevent future. 

 
2.6 Immediate Concerns Condition:
Inspect all exterior wood at the soffits and fascias/rake boards. Replace all damaged/missing areas.



Report: 2461   Address: 1526 Jackson Ave
Page 7

© Quality Home Inspections Confidential - for client use only.   Use by any unauthorized persons is prohibited.

 
Chimney:
2.7 Chimney Type:
The chimney is composed of, brick.

 
2.8 Chimney Maintenance:
Any unused chimney should be capped off to keep water and animals from entering the home. 

 
Foundation
2.9 Type
The foundation of the home is, a crawl space.

2.10 Maintenance Condition:
There is debris noted in the crawl space at time of inspection. It is recommended to have removed to avoid insects and
minimize safety hazards.
The crawl space needs installation/replacement of  moisture poly barrier where not covering the ground to prevent
moisture from entering the air and causing issues.
Remove the dead rodent seen in the crawl space.



Report: 2461   Address: 1526 Jackson Ave
Page 8

© Quality Home Inspections Confidential - for client use only.   Use by any unauthorized persons is prohibited.

 
2.11 Immediate Concerns Condition:
Fungus is noted in areas of the crawlspace. Have a licensed moisture/termite specialist to treat, evaluate and make
recommendations or repairs to the entire area.
Treat as needed for powder post beetles.
Replace the dry rooted beam at the front right corner of the crawl space.
Properly repair the sub-flooring and framing under the bathroom.
Remove the old waste pipe from the crawl space.
Due to the length of the floor joists it is recommended to add another set of piers and beams on both sides of the main
beam so to take the dips out of the floors and add extra support to keep walls from cracking at the plaster.
Have a licensed and insured contractor evaluate and make any further recommendations or repairs as needed to the
foundation and/or the crawl space area of the home. 



Report: 2461   Address: 1526 Jackson Ave
Page 9

© Quality Home Inspections Confidential - for client use only.   Use by any unauthorized persons is prohibited.

 



Report: 2461   Address: 1526 Jackson Ave
Page 10

© Quality Home Inspections Confidential - for client use only.   Use by any unauthorized persons is prohibited.

ROOF SYSTEM
Although not required to, we generally attempt to evaluate various roof types by walking on their surfaces.  If we are
unable or unwilling to do this for any reason, we take great care in evaluating the system thoroughly through every
aspect available to us at time of inspection.  Every roof will wear differently relative to its age, number of layers, quality
of material, method of application, exposure to weather conditions, and the regularity of its maintenance.  We can only
offer an opinion of the general quality and condition of the roofing material. Roof surfaces and materials over 10 years
old are subject to issues that may arise; those include but are not limited to those associated with age.  Maintenance and
general repairs can be performed and may prolong the life of the existing materials, however  larger repairs or
replacement may be necessary at any time.

The inspector cannot and does not offer an opinion or warranty as to whether the roof leaks or may be subject to future
leakage.  The waterproof membrane beneath roofing materials is generally concealed and cannot be examined without
removing the roof material.  Although roof condition can be evaluated, it is virtually impossible for anyone to detect a
leak except as it is occurring or by specific water tests, which are beyond the scope of our service.  Even water stains on
ceilings or on framing within attics will not necessarily confirm an active leak without some corroborative evidence, and
such evidence can be deliberately concealed.  We evaluate every roof conscientiously, but we will not predict its
remaining life expectancy, or guarantee that it will not leak.  Naturally, the sellers or the occupants of a residence will
generally have the most intimate knowledge of the roof and of its history. Therefore, we recommend that you ask the
sellers about it, and that you either include comprehensive roof coverage in your home insurance policy, or that you
obtain a roof certification from an established local roofing company.  We do not inspect attached accessories including
by not limited to solar systems, antennae, and lightning arrestors.
Attic & Insulation:
3.1 Structure:
The attic/roof structure utilizes, conventional framing for the structure of the roof. 
The attic is full, this means that it spans the entire area of the house.

 
3.2 Maintenance Condition:
There is debris and/or personal belongings noted in the attic. Due to this we may have been unable to view all areas. 



Report: 2461   Address: 1526 Jackson Ave
Page 11

© Quality Home Inspections Confidential - for client use only.   Use by any unauthorized persons is prohibited.

 
3.3 Immediate Concerns Condition:
Inspect the entire roof framing, repair the roof planks and replace the moisture damaged ridge pole at the rear valley and
replace the framing around the chimney.
Seal all gaps in the attic at the soffits.
A contractor licensed and insured contractor should evaluate and make any recommendations or repairs as needed to the
attic.

 
3.4 Condition:



Report: 2461   Address: 1526 Jackson Ave
Page 12

© Quality Home Inspections Confidential - for client use only.   Use by any unauthorized persons is prohibited.

There is no insulation installed at time of inspection. It is recommend to add additional insulation in all areas for proper
thermal coverage to modern requirements.

 
Roof:
3.5 Roof Style
The roof style is:
gable

 
3.6 Roof Covering:
metal

3.7 Roof Access:
The roof was accessed or viewed by physically walking on the roof. 
3.8 Age:
The roof is 30+ years old. 

3.9 Immediate Concerns Condition:
Have a licensed and insured metal roofing contractor further evaluate and make any further recommendations or repairs
as needed to the roofing system. 



Report: 2461   Address: 1526 Jackson Ave
Page 13

© Quality Home Inspections Confidential - for client use only.   Use by any unauthorized persons is prohibited.

 
In accordance with our standards, we do not attempt to enter attics that have less than thirty-six inches of headroom, are
restricted by ducts, or in which the insulation obscures the joists and thereby makes mobility hazardous, in which case
we would inspect them as best we can from the access point.  In regard to evaluating the type and amount of insulation
on the attic floor, we use only generic terms and approximate measurements, and do not sample or test the material for
specific identification.  Also, we do not disturb or move any portion of it, and it may well obscure water pipes, electrical
conduits, junction boxes, exhaust fans, and other components.



Report: 2461   Address: 1526 Jackson Ave
Page 25

© Quality Home Inspections Confidential - for client use only.   Use by any unauthorized persons is prohibited.

INTERIOR ROOMS
Our inspection of living space includes the visually accessible areas of walls, floors, cabinets and closets, and the
testing of a representative number of windows and doors, switches and outlets. We do not evaluate window treatments,
move furnishings or possessions, lift carpets or rugs, empty closets or cabinets, nor comment on cosmetic deficiencies.
We may not comment on cracks that appear around windows and doors, along lines of framing members or along
seams of drywall and plasterboard.  These are typically caused by minor movement, such as wood shrinkage, common
settling, and seismic activity, and will often reappear if they are not correctly repaired.  Such cracks can become the
subject of disputes, and are therefore best evaluated by a specialist.  Floor covering damage or stains may be hidden by
furniture, and the condition of floors underlying floor coverings is not inspected.  Determining the condition of insulated
glass windows is not always possible due to temperature, weather and lighting conditions.  Check with owners for further
information.   All fireplaces should be cleaned and inspected on a regular basis to make sure that no cracks have
developed. Large fires in the firebox can overheat the firebox and flue liners, sometimes resulting in internal damage. 
Testing, identifying, or identifying the source of environmental pollutants or odors (including but not limited to- lead,
mold, allergens, odors from household pets and cigarette smoke) is beyond the scope of our service, but can become
equally contentious or difficult to eradicate. Smoke Alarms; If not already installed, should be placed in each bedroom
and in both upper and lower hallways for maximum safety, test units regularly as per standard-install new batteries and
replace older/broken units as needed. We recommend you carefully determine and schedule whatever remedial
services may be deemed advisable or necessary before the close of escrow.
Doors:
7.1 Front Door:
Have the storm door closure adjusted as needed for proper operation. 

 
7.2 Other Exterior Doors:
Have the storm door closure adjusted as needed for proper operation. The exterior door weather seals are damaged or
deteriorated and should be replaced for a proper thermal barrier and so it is impenetrable to weather and insects.
Repair/replace the rear entry door as needed.



Report: 2461   Address: 1526 Jackson Ave
Page 26

© Quality Home Inspections Confidential - for client use only.   Use by any unauthorized persons is prohibited.

 
7.3 Interior Doors:
Adjust any doors that are rubbing or sticking at the frame to operate properly. 
There are door(s) missing around the house, have replaced as needed.
Have the door cut for a proper 5/8 inch airflow at the floor as is standard. 

 
Windows:
7.4 General Type
The windows are composed of:
wood
single hung
storm windows

7.5 Maintenance Condition:
There is one or more window screen(s) that is not installed. Inquire with owner as to their location.
There are screen(s) that have holes or damage noted around the home.  Have the screens repaired or replaced as needed.



Report: 2461   Address: 1526 Jackson Ave
Page 27

© Quality Home Inspections Confidential - for client use only.   Use by any unauthorized persons is prohibited.

 
7.6 Immediate Concern Condition:
There are some windows in the home that are hard to operate. Have these windows further evaluated and repaired or
replaced as needed and operational at the walkthrough.
There are cracked window panes, damaged gable and crawl space windows, damaged locks and damaged/missing counter
weights.
A licensed and insured window expert should further evaluate and make any recommendations or repairs as needed the
windows as they should all be operable for safety.
Due to the conditions viewed at the time of inspection, it is recommended to consider replacing the existing windows. 
A licensed and insured window expert should further evaluate and make any recommendations or repairs as needed the
windows.



Report: 2461   Address: 1526 Jackson Ave
Page 28

© Quality Home Inspections Confidential - for client use only.   Use by any unauthorized persons is prohibited.

 
Interior Walls:
7.7 General Material:
The interior walls are composed of:
drywall
plaster

7.8 Maintenance Conditions:
Unable to inspect the interior of all closets.
Settlement cracks are noted at the doors.



Report: 2461   Address: 1526 Jackson Ave
Page 29

© Quality Home Inspections Confidential - for client use only.   Use by any unauthorized persons is prohibited.

 
7.9 Immediate Conditions:
Due to some of the conditions viewed,  for example damaged walls, holes, loose tape joints etc,  repairs are needed to
some of the interior walls around the home to prevent further damage.
Have the large crack at the rear bedroom exterior wall further evaluated/repaired as needed.

 
Ceilings:
7.10 General Type:
The interior ceilings are composed of:
drywall
plaster
acoustic panels

7.11 Immediate Conditions:
After the roof has been repaired/replaced the moisture damaged ceiling tiles should be replaced.
When acoustic tiles are installed in an older home with plaster it is normally due to damaged ceilings, evaluate/repair as
needed.
Due to some of the conditions viewed, repairs are needed to some of the interior walls around the home to prevent further
damage. 



Report: 2461   Address: 1526 Jackson Ave
Page 30

© Quality Home Inspections Confidential - for client use only.   Use by any unauthorized persons is prohibited.

 
Floors:
7.12 Materials:
Hardwood flooring is installed in some rooms/areas in the home.
Tile flooring is installed in some rooms/areas in the home.

7.13 Maintenance Condition:
Due to the condition of the hardwood flooring it is recommended to refinish the floor to revitalize and protect. 
Damage and deterioration is noted to the tile. Have repaired or replaced as needed to ensure functionality.
Uneven floors are not uncommon for a home of this age, monitor.



Report: 2461   Address: 1526 Jackson Ave
Page 31

© Quality Home Inspections Confidential - for client use only.   Use by any unauthorized persons is prohibited.

 
7.14 Immediate Conditions:
Secure the loose floor boards as needed within the home.

 
Fireplace:
7.15 Type:
The fireplace is noted to be a wood burning unit.

 
7.16 Condition:
The fireplace has been capped off/is no longer in use and was therefore not inspected. If the unit is ever to be used, a
thorough inspection by a licensed chimney expert should be performed before first use.



Report: 2461   Address: 1526 Jackson Ave
Page 32

© Quality Home Inspections Confidential - for client use only.   Use by any unauthorized persons is prohibited.

 
Smoke / Fire Detector:
7.17 General:
It is recommended to add carbon monoxide detector or CO detectors within the home for safety. A carbon monoxide
detector or CO detector is a device that detects the presence of the carbon monoxide (CO) gas in order to prevent carbon
monoxide poisoning.
There are some units that are missing and need to be replaced,  Smoke detectors should be installed in each bedroom and
in both upper and lower hallways for maximum safety. Testing for proper operation and installation of fresh batteries
yearly is recommended.



 
 
 
 

 
1108 Ohio Street 





�

�

�

�



�

�

�



Fo
r:

N
ot

e:
Th

is
C

er
tif

ic
at

e
of

A
pp

ro
pr

ia
te

ne
ss

ex
pi

re
s6

m
on

th
sf

ro
m

th
e

ap
pr

ov
al

da
te

.

Le
e

H
an

na
h

11
08

O
hi

o
St

re
et

R
ep

la
ce

fr
on

td
oo

rw
ith

cr
af

ts
m

an
st

yl
e

2-
ov

er
-3

or
si

m
ila

rs
ty

le
re

ct
an

gu
la

rg
la

ss
pa

ne
ls

.

PL
N

-C
A

PP
-2

01
9-

08
4

09
/2

3/
20

19













 
 
 
 

 
1329 Chesapeake Avenue 



Including non-
decorative integral 
trim. -NL







 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 
 
 
 

 
1209 Holly Avenue 













 

 



 

 



 



 
 
 
 

 
1303 Holly Avenue 









 



 

 



 
 
 
 

 
1307 Jefferson Street 









Before

* completed work photograph will be presented at the meeting.




